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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Built in 1891-92, the Chautauqua tower 1is a circular structure of rough native
stone, approximately 34 feet in diameter and three stories high, capped by an
11-sided roof of steeppitch with a flagpole rising from its peak.

The stone wall at the first floor level is broken by an entrance door on the south,
four double casement windows on the south and west, and four single casement Windows
on the north and east. The double casements have 15 panes three abreast per sash;
the narrow single casements have 20 smaller panes two abreast. The second floor is
lighted on the south and west by four double casements having 20 panes four abreast
per sash, one double casement of the first floor type over the door, and four single
casements matching those below on the north and east. The third floor has nine dou-
ble casements of 20 panes four abreast per sash circling the tower. Each of these
paired third story sash meet at an angle directly beneath a corresponding angle of
the overhanging roof cornice. The exterior stonework of the third story between the
windows curves inward as it rises to the cornice. The cedar—shingled roof makes a
similar curve as it splays out just above the cornice in its descent from the peak.

A square chimney of matching stome prcjects from the northwest side of the tower at
its juncture with an adjoining frame building and rises approximately six feet above
the cornice line. Another stone projection rises from the top of the tower wall to
the left of the chimney, and a gabled, shingled belfry roof. runs between them. The

chimney is connected to a fireplace on the second floor and a stoveplpe opening on

the third floor.

The first floor of the tower is undivided except for an enclosed stair curving
against the east wall. It is unknown whether this space may once have been parti-
tioned. The second floor, mnow open, displays evidence of having been divided into
two rooms of unequal size. The third floor retains its original interior walls
forming three rooms. A central post concealed at the juncture of these walls is
the tower's only interior supporting member. The stair, which appears to be origi-
nal, continues in the second and third stories to the attic.

The exterior appearance of the tower is little changed. A 1914 fire destroyed the
original wood-shingled roof, which was then replaced by a tin-covered roof. This
had seriously deteriorated by 1975, when a new roof closely matching the original
was installed. Crude wooden blocks suggestive of brackets beneath the eaves were
not replaced in this restoration. Most of the wood—framed casement sash are ori-
ginal; others are accurate reproductions. The bells installed in the belfry have
long been absent. The mortar between the stones has been repointed and the chimney
has been rendered nonfunctional by a cement cap. The ferrous stone quarried near-—
by, originally a dark gray, has oxidized redder and lighter over the years.
Remnants of flashing on the interioX walls at the third floor level suggest that
the third floor windows wWere oOnce unglazed, requiring the floor to be covered with
protective roofing.
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The most significant alterations have been to the tower's architectural context. Un-
til 1919 a stone arch extended from over the entrance door omn the south side to an-
other circular stone structure, framing an entrance gate to the Chautaugqua grounds.

A 1940 moderne flat roof on cylindrical posts now attaches' to the tower in the same
location. Opposite this feature, a 1-1/2-story stone building joined the tower on
the northwest. This burned in the 1914 fire and was replaced by the taller frame
structure standing today, which retains some of the original stonework in its nor th-
east wall. Doors on the first and second floors of the tower connect with this
building, as they did with its predecessor. Both of these later additions are clear
departures from the original rustic Chautauqua architecture, and although the frame
building is not unattractive, neither possesses particular historical or architectur-

_al merit. TFor these reasons, they are excluded from this National Register nomina-

tion. All other Chautauqua structures in Glen Echo Park have been removed except
for a portion of a stone caretaker's cottage, which lacks sufficient integrity for
inclusion in this nomination. Given the nearly total alteration in the tower's con-
text, the National Register boundary is limited to the perimeter of the tower.

(The nearby carousel, a significant remnant of the later Glen Echo Amusement Park,
is the subject of a separate National Register nomination. The Clara Barton house
adjoining Glen Echo Park, built contemporary with the Chautauqua, is on the Register
as the Clara Barton National Historic Site.)
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—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1gg97-92 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Victor Mindelef

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Chautauqua tower is significant as the sole intact physical remmant of the late-
19th~century Chautauqua movement at Glen Echo, Maryland, and as a local specimen of

late-Victorian rustic architecture.

The Chautauqua movement, so called from the first assembly of its adherents on the
shore of Lake Chautauqua, New York, in 1874, was an effort to democratize learning
within an ecumenical Protestant religious framework by bringing the culture of the
well-to-do to the masses. By 1891 the movement had expanded from its permanent home
base to 52 more modest assemblies conducting two-week summer programs of educational
lectures, classes, and entertainments in tents. The idea caught hold in Washington,
D.C., where several groups formed a Chautauqua Union to plan programs for the area.

Coinciding with this local flowering of the Chautauqua movement were the plans of
Edwin Baltzley, a Philadelphia real estate promoter, and his brother Edward of Wash-
ington for a residential and resort development to be known as Glen Echo-on-the-
Potomac. By 1889 they had acquired some 1300 acres on the Maryland bank of the Po-—
tomac between Cabin John Creek and Sycamore Island, northwest of Washington. Stone
for houses like that built by Edward Baltzley overlooking Sycamore Island (still
standing outside Glen Echo) would be provided property owners from quarries onsite.
An elaborate rustic resort "cafe" of rough cedar logs, the "Pawtawomeck," was opened
to the public in July 1890 but succumbed to fire that November. A giant stone hotel
evocative of a Rhineland castle was promised in Glen Echo publicity but was never
realized. ’

Seeing the Chautauqua idea as a potential enhancement of their development, the
Baltzleys on March 24, 1891, deeded 80 acres to the "National Chautauqua of Glen
Echo." The National Chautauqua was incorporated by 43 prominent citizens including
John Wesley Powell, George Peters, Arthur B. Cropley, and the Baltzleys themselves
"to promote liberal and practical education, especially among the masses of the
people; to teach the sciences, arts, languages, and literature; to prepare its pa-
trons for their several pursuits and professions in life, and to fit them for the
duties which devolve upon them as members of society."

(continued)
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Construction began quickly om two principal structures——the Amphitheater and the Hall
of Philosophy-—and on the stone tower, archway, and adjoining buildings forming the
gateway to the campus. The Amphitheater and Hall of Philosophy were designed in rus-
tic style by Theophilus Parsons Chandler of Philadelphia, architect of the Baltzley
house and the cafe. The tower, the subject of the present nomination, housed admin-
istrative offices and mounted bells from the McShane foundry of Baltimore. It was
designed by Victor Mindelef, a local architect.

Clara Barton, founder of the American Red Cross, became president of the Woman's
Executive Committee of the National Chautauqua of Glen Echo, formed to foster the
"advancement of woman, improving and enlarging her scope of usefulness." Miss Bar-
ton herself acquired adjoining property at Glen Echo in 1891 and built what would
later become her residence and American Red Cross headquarters. Its original rough
stone facade, removed in 1897 except for corner towers, matched the character of

the Chautauqua buildings nearby.

The assembly opened in June 1891 with the buildings still unfinished, although the
Amphitheater was sufficiently complete to accommodate the large dedication crowd.
The array of Chautauqua programs was well attended by several hundred persons until
August. But this first successful season proved to be the last. In late August
Dr. Henry Spencer, head of the Chautauqua's business school, died of pneumonia.
Rumor spread that he had contracted malaria, making people reluctant to visit the
area. This dampened residential lot sales and cut the cash flow necessary to sup-
port expansion. With the area's image thus tainted, the National Chautauqua of
Glen Echo was doomed. (Except for the original assembly, which remains active on
Lake Chautauqua to this day, the Chautauqua movement evolvéd to a long-popular
traveling format.)

In 1899 the National Chautaugqua property was leased to the Glen Echo Company, an
amusement park venture. The Amphitheater eventually became a midway, and a roller
coaster and numerous other structures significantly altered the character of the
area. The midway was demolished in 1956, by which time the amusement park had
passed its prime. The property was ultimately acquired by the Federal Government
in 1971 for administration by the National Park Service. The majority of Glen
Echo Park structures mow present date from the amusement park era; only the stone
entrance tower remains intact from the Chautauqua development.

Despite the loss of its architectural context, the Chautauqua tower stands as a
highly picturesque Glen Echo landmark and as a reminder of a significant aspect of

the modern community's origims.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The National Register boundary follows the exterior perimeter of the tower.

(See Section 7 for justificatiom.)
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